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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Medipack Innovations Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Medipack Innovations Private Limited (“the
Company™), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss,
including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement
of Changes in Equity for the vear then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of material accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, its

profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements” section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

During the year, the Income Tax Department (‘the department’) had conducted a search under section
132 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (‘the Act’) on holding Company’s registered office, corporate office,
few of its manufacturing locations, residence of few of its employees’key managerial personnel, other
premises and few of its group entities.

The Income Tax Department consequent to search on holding company, has also issued notices under
Section 148 of the Income Tax Act 1961 which requires the Company to furnish income tax returns in
response to notice under Section 148 of the Act for the assessment vears 2020-21, 2021-22 and 2022-
23. The Company has filed income tax returns in response to such notices under section 148 of the Act.
Based on the returns filed in response to section 148 and the assessment made by the management and

its tax advisor, the Company is of the view that no material adjustments are required to be made in these
financial statements.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors 1s responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Board report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements docs not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether such other
information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge oblained in the
audit or otherwise appears to bc materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in scetion 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for prevenmting and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing ihe financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operaticns, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
frce from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» Tdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is bigher than for one resulting from errer,

as frand may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are approptiate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.
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Evaluate (he appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concem basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related o events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concermn. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to confinue as a going concern.

Fvaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial slatements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner lhat achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

W also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other

matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
saleguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report} Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we repori, to the extent applicable, that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our cxamination of those books except for the matters stated m the
paragraph (j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11{g).

(¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statemcnt of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companics (Indian Accounting Standards}
Rules, 2015, as amended;

(¢) The matter described in Emphasis of Matter - Income tax search above, in cur opinion, may
have an adverse effect on the functioning of the company;

(f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024,
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2024, from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2} of the Act;
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(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2" to this report;

(h) The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in the paragraph 2(b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b) and paragraph
(j)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g).

(i) The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2024;

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

il.

iil.

iv.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note 30A to the financial statements;

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses;

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding

Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.
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vi. The Company has migrated to a upgraded version of the accounting software from legacy
accounting software during the year. Based on our examination which included test checks,
the Company has used accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has
a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout
such period for all relevant transactions recorded in the upgraded version of the software,
except in respect of legacy accounting software where audit trail feature was not enabled,
as described in note 39 to the financial statements. Further, during the course of our audit
we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect
of upgraded version of the accounting software.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Numb 1003E/E300005

\\Wﬁ‘*‘”

per Vishal Sharma

Partner

Membership Number: 096766
UDIN: 24096766BKFFRQ7113
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: May 15, 2024
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Medipack Innovations Private Limited (*the Company”)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belicf, we state that:

(D) A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment,

{i}(a}B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

(1)(b) Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the management during the year
and no material discrepancies were identified on such verification.

(i)(c) The title deeds of all the immovable propertics {other than propertics where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) are held in the name of the
Company.

{(i)¥{d) The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment {including Right of use assets)
or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2024,

(1){(e) There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(ii}(a) The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year except for goods
in transit. In our opinion, the frequency of verification by the management is reasonable and the
coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate and discrepancies of
10% or more in aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed on such physical verilication.
(Goods in transit have been received subsequent to the year ended March 31, 2024,

(in(b) As disclosed in note 14 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned working
capital imits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from hanks during the year on the basis of security
of current assets of the Company, Based on the records examined by us in the normal course of audit
of the financial statements, the quarterly returns/statements tfiled by the Company with such banks are
in agreement with the andited books of accounts of the Company.

The Company do not have sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate
frem financial institutions during the year on the basis of security of current assets of the Company.

(iii) (a) During the year, the Company has provided loans to its employees as follows:

Particulars Loans in Rs. Lacs
Aggregate amount granted during the year -

- Others (lean to employees) 5.78

Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect of above

cases

- Others (loan to employees} NIL

During the year, the Company has not provided any other advances in nature of leans, stood guarantee L

25805

or provided securities to companies, firms, limited Hability partnerships or any other parties and hence /; o,
not commented upon. ii il "'f?;}
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(iii)(b) During the year, the terms and condition of loan given to its employees are not prejudicial to the
Company's interest. During the year, the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees,
provided securities and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or any other parties other than loan to employees.

(iii)(c) In respect of a loan granted to employees, the schedule of repayment of principal has been
stipulated in the arrangement and the repayment or receipts are regular. These loans are interest free
and accordingly reporting on repayment of interest is not commented upon. The Company has not
granted advance in the nature of loan to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties hence not commented upon.

(iii)(d) There are no amounts of loans to employees which are outstanding for more than 90 days.

(iii)(€) There are no loans to its employees which was fallen due during the year, that have been renewed
or extended or fresh loan granted to settle overdue of existing loan given to same parties.

(iii)(f) The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties other than loan to employees as mentioned (iii)(a) above. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(iv) There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of sections
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(v) The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which
are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules

made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) We have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules
made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the
Companies Act, 2013, related to the manufacture of pharmaceutical products, and are of the opinion
that prima facie, the specified accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not,
however, made a detailed examination of the same.

(vii)(a) Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and

other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities though
there has been a slight delay in a few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by
us, undisputed dues in respect of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance,
income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
statutory dues which were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the
date they became payable, are as follows:
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Statement of Arvears of Statutory Dues Ouistanding for More than Six Months

Name of the Statute Nature of the | Amount Period to | Due Date  of
Dues (Rs.in which the | Datc Payment
Lacs) amount relates
The Employees | Payment  of | 0.04 March 2019 April Not  yet
Provident Funds and | Statutory 2019 paid
Miscellaneous Provident I'und
provision Act, 1952

(vii)(b) The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ siate insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duly of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues
have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

[ Amount of Demand Period  to Forum where
without netting of | Amount paid | which  the o .
5 _ dispute 18
Name  of amount paid under | under protest amount .
Nature of dues _ pending
Statute protest relates
. . {Financial
(Rs. in Lacs) (Rs. in Lacs) Year)
Income Tisallowances 2.35 - | 2016-17 Asgsessing
Tax  Act, | and additions to Officer,
| 1961 taxable income | Income Tax

(viil) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year,
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(a) The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment of
interest thereon to any lender.

{(ix)(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defauller by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

(ix)(c) The Company did not have any term loans outstanding during the year hence, the requirement
to report on clause (ix){c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(d) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(ix)(c) The Company does not have any subsidiary, asgociate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(¢} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(f) The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{(x}a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instrumients) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

(x)(b} The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xi)(a) No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
year.

(xi)(b) During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has
been filed by cost auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(x1)(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore,
the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a) to (¢} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Cempanies Act, 2013
wherc applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required
by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 arc not applicable to the Company
and accordingly the requirements to repert under clause 3{xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section
177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

(xiv){a) The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and naturc of its
business.

(3iv){b) The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period
under audit have been considered by us.

(xv) The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected
with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(xvi)(a) The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to rcport on clause {(xvi)(a} of the Order is
nol applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(b) ‘The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Iinancial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, (he requirement to report on clause (xvi){(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi)(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve

Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi} of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(xvi}(d) The Group does not have more than one CIC as part of the Group, hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3{xvi}(d} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year. The Company has not
incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial ycar,

(xvili) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 40 to the financial statements, ageing and
expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans
and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our
attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and
when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based
on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that
all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by
the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required fo be
transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in compliance with
second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 36 to
the financial statements.

(xx)(b) There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred
to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act.
This matter has been disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements.

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAT Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

s

per Vishal Sharma

Partner

Membership Number: 096766
UDIN: 24096766BKFFRQ7113
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: May 15, 2024
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REFORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF MEDIPACK INNOVATIONS PRIVATE LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Medipack
innovations Private Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2024, in conjunction with our audit of
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaiming internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate Internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over I'inancial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both igsued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effecuively in all material respects,

QOur gudit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of inlernal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial confrols with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance rcgarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 655"
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
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company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Contrels With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL

For S.R. Batliboi & CO. LLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm Registration Number: 301003E/E300005

R

per Vishal Sharma

Partner

Membership Number: 096766
UDIN: 24096766BKFFRQ7113
Place of Signature: New Delhi
Date: May 15, 2024




Medipack Innovations Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024

_All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated s

As at

As at

Piarticulars e 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 505.18 904.53
Intangible assets a 013 0.13
Right-of-use assets 5 132.73 134.32
Firancial assets
Cther financial assets 6 13.04 13.01
Income tax assets (net) 7 43.42 46.44
Other non-current assets 8 65,91 0.95
Totzl non-current assets 1,101.41 1,099.38
Current assets
Inventories 9 1,595.25 1,141.39
Financial assets
Trade receivabies 10 1,337.94 1,244.42
Cash and cash equivalents 11 0.55 0.28
Others (5] 0.16 0.17
Other current assets a8 85.24 36.61
Total current assets 3,019.14 2,422.87
Total assets 4,120.55 3,522.25
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 600.00 600,00
Other equity 13 2.800.71 2.441.68
Total equity 3,400.71 3,041.63
LIABILITES
Non-current liabilities
Financial habilities
Borrowings 14 15.46 5.04
Provisions 15 - 7.99
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 16 63.42 58.47
Other non-current liabilities 17 10.00 13.34
Total non-current liabilities 88.88 B84.84
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Barrowings 14 266.88 75.59
Trade payables 18
(a) totai ourstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 3.82 40.54
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 294.34 207,60
entarpnses
Provisions 15 42.40 43.53
Income tax liabilities {nat) 7 11.90 -
Other current liabilities 17 11.62 28.07
Total current liabilities 630.96 395.73
Total liabilities 719.84 480.57
Total equity and liabilities 4,120.55 3,522.25
Summary of material accounting policies 2
Other notes on accounts
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 3-42
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Medipack Innovations Private Limited
‘Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

% Year ended Year ended
- Not
Particulars oLes 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
I Revenue from operations 19 5,999.36 5,233.44
11 Other income 20 103.10 67.73
111 Total income (I + II) 6,102.46 5,301.17
IV Expenses
Cost of raw materials and packing material consumed 21 4,787.93 4,181.09
Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress 22 (57.43) 97.29
Employee benefits expense 23 551.74 488.68
Finance costs 24 9.88 15.65
Depreciation and amortization expense 25 97.27 $6.75
Other expenses 26 238.23 262.35
Total expenses (IV) 5,627.62 5,141.81
v Profit before tax (III-IV) 474.84 159.36
VI Tax Expense:
Current tax 27 119.01 50.38
Deferred tax 27 3.52 (6.00)
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 27 (2.47) (5.29)
Total tax expense (VI) 120.06 39.09
VIT Profit for the year (V-VI) 354.78 120.27
VIII Other comprehensive income
(i) Item that will not be reclassified to profit or lass
- Remeasurement gain / (loss) of the defined benefit plan 31 5.68 5.16
(i) Income tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
- Remeasurement of the defined benefit plan 27 (1.43) (1.30)
Other comprehensive income for the year 4.25 3.86
1X Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII) 359.03 124.13
Earnings per equity share (EPS) (face value of INR 100 each)
Basic EPS (in INR) 59.13 20.04
Diluted EPS (in INR) 59.13 20.04
Summary of material accounting policies 2
Other notes on accounts
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 3-42
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Medipack Innovations Private Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

d.

Equity share capital

Particulars Amount
Equity shares of INR 100 each issued, subscribed and fully paid
As at 01 April , 2022 600.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year -
As at 31 March 2023 600.00
Changes in equity share capital during the period =
As at 31 March 2024 600.00
Other equity
Reserves and Surplus
Particulars : < Total
Retained earnings
Balance as at 01 April , 2022 2,317.55 2,317.55
Profit for the year 120.27 120.27
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 3.86 3.86
Total comprehensive income for the year 124,13 124.13
Balance as at 31 March 2023 2,441.68 2,441.68
Profit for the period 354.78 354.78
Other comprehensive income for the peried, net of income tax 4.25 4,25
Total comprehensive income for the period 359.03 359.03
Balance as at 31 March 2024 2,800.71 2,800.71
Summary of material accounting policies 2
Other notes on accounts 3-42

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Medipack Innovations Private Limited

Statement of Cash Flows for the period Year ended 31 March 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

A.Cashflow from operating activities
Profit before tax

Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Loss/ (gain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Finance income
Finance costs
Trade and other receivable balances written off
Allowance for doubtful loans

Working capital adjustments:
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables
(Increase)/ Decrease in inventories
(Increase)/ Decrease in financial asset - loans
(Increase)/ Decrease in financial asset - others
(Increase)/ Decrease in other asset
Increase/ (Decrease) in provisions
Increase/ (Decrease) in trade payable
Increase/ (Decrease) in other liability

Income tax paid
Net cash flows from operating activities (A)

B.Cashflow from investing activities

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Interest received (finance income)

Net cash flows flow investing activities (B)

C.Cashflow from financing activities
Interest paid

Proceeds from borrowings — Non-Current
Repayment of borrowings - Non-Current
Proceeds from borrowings - Current
Repayment of borrowings = Current

Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities (C)

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of Cash and cash equivalents :
Balances with banks
Cash in hand

474.84 159.36
97.27 96,75
(5.35) (0.31)
(1.12) (0.54)

9,74 15.36
5.12 "

- 42.32
(98.64) 217.21
(453.86) 510.82
0.04 0.04
(0.02) (0.04)

(54.59) 78.07
(3.44) (23.89)
50.18 (487.82)

(19.79) 14.29

0.38 621.62
(101.62) (52.59)
(101.24) 569.03
9,17 0.34
(100.14) (18.93)
1.07 . 0.50
(89.90) (18.09)

(10.35) (15.93)
25.00 =
(9.91) (273.24)

186.67 -

- (469.29)
191.41 (758.46)
0.27 (207.52)
0.28 207.80
0.55 0.28
0,55 0.28
0.55 0.28

The above statement of cash flows has been prepared using "Indirect method" set out in applicable Ind AS 7, "Statement of Cash Flows".

Summary of material accounting policies
Other notes on accounts

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
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Medipack Innovations Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

i

2.01

2.02

2.03

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Medipack Innovations Private Limited (“the Company”) (CIN No.- U28113DL2012PTC237207) was incorporated on 11 June, 2012 under the
provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 having its registered office at 208, Okhla Industrial Estate, Phase-III, New Delhi - 110020, India, It is a
subsidiary Company of Mankind Pharma Limited. The Company is engaged in the manufacturing of packing material for pharmaceutical
companies,

The financial statements were authorised by the Board of Directors for issue in accordance with resolution passed on May 15, 2024,

Material Accounting Policies

This note provides a list of the Material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these Indian Accounting Standards (Ind-AS) financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years.

Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

These financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of
Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule 111), These financial statements are presented in INR and all values are
rounded to the nearest lacs (INR 00,000), except when otherwise indicated.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention, except for the following assets and liabilities:
i} Certain financial assets and liabilities that is measured at fair value

ii} Defined benefit plans-plan assets measured at fair value

iii)Assets held for sale-measured at fair value less cost to sell

Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non- current classification. An asset is treated as current
when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for purpose of trading

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for purpose of trading

- It Is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non current.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are classified as non- current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, the
Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Capital work in
progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. The cost comprises of purchase price, taxes, duties, freight and other
incidental expenses directly attributable and related to acquisition and installation of the concerned assets and are further adjusted by the
amount of input tax credit availed wherever applicable.

Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the
recognition criteria are met, When Material parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced at Intervals, the Company depreciates
them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying
amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in profit ar loss as incurred. The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use is included in
the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any Material part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work- in- progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under installation / under development as at the balance sheet date.
The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.




Medipack Innovations Private Limited
Notes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024
All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

2.04

2.05

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated on prorata basis on straight-line method using the useful lives of the assets
estimated by management. The useful life is as follows:

Assets Useful life (in years)
Building 30

Plant and Equipment 15
Furniture and Fixtures 10

Vehicles 8-10

Office Equipment 5

Electrical equipment and fittings 10
Computers 3

MNetwork and servers 6

The useful lives have been determined based on technical evaluation done by the management's expert. The residual values are not more than
5% of the original cost of the assets. The asset's residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate.

Leasehold land is amortized on a straight line basis over the lease term of 90 to 99 years.

Investment Properties

Property that is held for long term rental yields or for capital appreciation or for both , and that is not occupied by the Company, is classified as
investment property. Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction cost and where applicable borrowing
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
loss, if any.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to assets carrying amount only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. When Material parts of investment property are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their respective useful lives. All other repair and
maintenance cost are expensed when incurred.

Though the Company measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment property is disclosed in the
notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an external independent valuer applying a valuation model as
per Ind AS 113 " Fair value measurement”.

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceads and the carrying amount of the
asset is recognised in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Investment properties are depreciated using straight line method over their estimated useful life. Investment properties comprising of factory

building is depreciated over useful life of 30 years and leasehold land is amortized on a straight line basis over the unexpired period of the
lease.

Transfer of property from investment property to the property, plant and equipment is made when the property is no longer held for lang term
rental yields or for capital appreciation or both at carrying amount of the property transferred.

Intangible assets
Separately acquired intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost, Cost of intangible assets acquired in business combination is
their fair value at the date of acquisition. Fellowing initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized development cost, are not capitalized and the
related expenditure is reflected in statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the expenditure is incurred. Cost comprises the purchase
price and any attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over their useful
economic lives and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortization
period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for
by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortization expense
on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the expense category consistent with the function of
the intanagible assets,

Gains or losses arising from disposal of the intangible assets are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the assets are disposed off.

Intangible assets with finite useful life are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful life as under
Assets Useful life (in years)

Computer Software
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2.06

2.07

(i)

Impairment of non- financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit's (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or

groups of assets, When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal,
recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation maodel is used, These
calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for each of the
Company's CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast calculations generally cover a period of five years.
For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using
a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not

exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the Company operates, or for the
market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, including impairment on inventories, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, except for
properties previously revalued with the revaluation surplus taken to OCI. For such properties, the impairment is recognised in OCI up to the
amount of any previous revaluation surplus.

For assets excluding intangible assets having indefinite life, an assessment is made at each repeorting date to determine whether there is an
indication that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates
the asset’'s or CGU's recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the
assumptions used to determine the asset's recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that
the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase,

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another
entity.

Financial Assets

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following measurement categories:
- Those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income, or thraugh profit or loss)

= Those measured at amortized cost

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Company's business model for managing them.

Initial recognition and measurement

With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a Material financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical

expedient, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs.

Trade receivables that do not contain a Material financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient and are
measured at the transaction price determined under Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section 'Revenue from contracts with
customers'.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that
are “solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)' on the principal amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and
is performed at an instrument level, Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit
or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The
business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order
to collect contractual cash flows while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCI are held within a business mode| with
the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
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Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in following categories:

- Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

- Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains and losses
(debt instruments)

- Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses upon derecognition
(equity instruments)

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
A ‘financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) Business Model Test : The objective is to hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows (rather than to sell the
instrument prior to its contractual maturity to realize its fair value changes) and;

b) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specific dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.

This category is most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
fees or costs that are an integral part of EIR, EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset, When calculating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but
does not consider the expected credit losses. The EIR amortization is included in other income in profit or loss. The losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the profit or loss, This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI) (debt instruments)
A *financial asset’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

a) Business Model Test : The objective of financial instrument is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
the financial assets; and

b) Cash flow characteristics test: The contractual terms of the Debt instrument give rise on specific dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on principal amount outstanding.

Debt instrument included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value
movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI), except for the recognition of interest income, impairment gains or
losses and foreign exchange gains or losses which are recognized in statement of profit and loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCIL. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair
value changes recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to profit or loss.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments designated at fair value
through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration
recagnised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS103 applies are classified as at FVTPL.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement of
profit and loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part
of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are
not subject to impairment assessment.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or ,where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.
removed from the Company's statement of financial position) when:

= The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

- the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a "pass through" arrangement and either;
(a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

(b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
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(ii)

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the
risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of
the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with IND AS 109, the Company applies expected credit losses( ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss
on the following financial asset and credit risk exposure

- Financial assets measured at amortized cost;
o Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income(FVTOCI);

ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from
the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a Material increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a Material increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses
expected over the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

The Company follows "simplified approach" for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
E: Trade receivables or contract revenue receivables;

- All lease receivables resulting from the transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116 -Leases

Under the simplified approach, the Company does not track changes in credit risk. Rather , it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss
allowance on the portfolio of trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of
trade receivable and is adjusted for forward looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss.
This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss. The balance sheet presentation for various
financial instruments is described below:

(a) Financial assets measured as at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write:
off criteria, the group does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

(b) Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, i.e. as a
liability.

(c) Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI, the expected credit losses do not
reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet, which remains at fair value. Instead, an amount egual to the allowance that
would arise if the asset was measured at amortised cost is recognised in other comprehensive income as the accumulated
impairment amount,

Financial liabilities:
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, leans and borrowings, and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs, All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company financial liabilities include loans and borrowings, trade
payables, trade deposits, retention money, liabilities towards services, sales incentive and other payables.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial liabilities are classified in two categories:
(i) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(ii} Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationship as defined by Ind AS 109, The separated embedded derivate are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the initial date of
recognition, and only if the criteria in IND AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to
changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However, the Company
may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the statement of profit
or loss. the Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (Loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective interest rate method.
Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the Effective interest rate amortization
process. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the Effective interest rate. The Effective interest rate amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Trade Payables

These amounts represents liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid. The
amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 60 to 90 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities
unless payment is not due within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortized cost using Effective interest rate method,

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial
guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment
requirements of IND AS 109 and the amount recognized less cumulative amortization.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial
liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financials assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal

right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Reclassification of financial assets/ financial liabilities

The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, no reclassification is
made for financial assets which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instruments, a
reclassification Is made only if there is a change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are
expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal
changes which are Material to the Company's operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model occurs
when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is Material to its operations. If the Company reclassifies financial assets,
it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting period

following the change in business model. The Company does not restate any previously recognised gains, losses (including impairment gains or
losses) or interest,
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2.08

2.09

2.10

a)

b)

=

ii)

Investment in Subsidiaries

The investment in subsidiaries are carried at cost as per IND AS 27, The Company regardless of the nature of its invelvement with an entity
(the investee), determines whether it is a parent by assessing whether it controls the investee, The Company controls an investee when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee. Thus, the Company controls an investee if and only if it has all the following:

(a) power over the investee;

(b) exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and

(c) the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the returns.

Investments are accounted in accordance with IND AS 105 when they are classified as held for sale. On disposal of investment, the difference
between its carrying amount and net disposal proceeds is charged or credited to the statement of profit and loss

Inventories
a) Basis of valuation:

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value after providing cost of obsolescence, if any. However, materials
and other items held for use in the production of inventaries are not written down below cost if the finished products in which

they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. The comparison of cost and net realizable value is made on
an item-by-item basis.

b) Method of Valuation:

i) Cost of raw materials has been determined by using moving weighted average cost method and comprises all costs of
purchase, duties, taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from tax authorities) and all other costs incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present locatien and condition.

ii) Cost of finished goods and work-in-progress includes direct labour and an appropriate share of fixed and variable production
overheads and excise duty as applicable. Fixed production overheads are allocated on the basis of normal capacity of
production facilities. Cost is determined on moving weighted average basis.

iii) Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Taxes

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period's taxable income based on the applicable income tax
rate adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax losses, Tax expense for
the year comprises of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax, assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the taxation authorities in

accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 and the Income Computation and Disclosure Standards (ICDS) enacted in India by using tax rates
and the tax laws that are enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to item recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside profit or loss (either in other

comprehensive income or equity).Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transactions either in OCI or directly in
equity.

Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject
to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that Is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the

timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

i} When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a

transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss.

ii) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, deferred

2.11

tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are re-

assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realized or the liability
is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside the statement of profit and loss is recognized outside the statement of profit and loss (either

in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or
direct in equity.

In the situations where any unit of the Company is entitled to a tax holiday under the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India, no deferred tax
(asset or liability) is recognized In respect of temporary differences which reverse during the tax holiday period, to the extent the unit's gross
total income is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday period. Deferred tax in respect of temporary differences which reverse after the
tax holiday period is recognized in the year in which the temporary differences originate. However, the Company restricts recognition of
deferred tax assets to the extent it is probable that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which such deferred tax assets
can be realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the temporary differences which originate first are considered to reverse first,

Revenue from contract with customers

The Company manufactures/ trades and sells a range of pharmaceutical and healthcare products, Revenue from contracts with customers
involving sale of these products is recognized at a point in time when control of the product has been transferred, and there are no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the customer's acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs when the products are shipped to specific location and
control has been transferred to the customers. The Company has objective evidence that all criterion for acceptance has been satisfied.

(a) Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of
the goods and there are no unfulfilled obligations.

The Company considers, whether there are other promises in the contract in which their are separate performance obligations, to which a
portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company allocates a
portion of the transaction price to goods bases on its relative prices and also considers the following:-

(i) Variable consideration

The Company recognizes revenue from the sale of goods measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. If the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods
to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
Material revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

(ii) Sales Return

The Company accounts for sales returns accrual by recording an allowance for sales returns concurrent with the recognition of
revenue at the time of a product sale, This allowance is based on the Company’s estimate of expected sales returns, With
respect to established products, the Company considers its historical experience of sales returns, levels of inventory in the
distribution channel, estimated shelf life, product discontinuances, price changes of competitive products, and the introduction
of competitive new products, to the extent each of these factors impact the Company’s business and markets, With respect to
new products intreduced by the Company, such products have historically been either extensions of an existing line of product
where the Company has historical experience or in therapeutic categories where established products exist and are sold either
by the Company or the Company’s competitors.
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Other Income
(a) Interest Income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest
income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest
rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for
example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses, Interest income is
included in other income in the statement of profit and loss.

{b) Export benefit

Revenue from export benefits arising from Duty entitlernent pass book (DEPB scheme), duty drawback scheme, merchandise
export incentive scheme are recognised on export of goods in accordance with their respective underlying scheme at fair value
of consideration received or receivable,

2.12 Retirement and other employee benefits

(i} Short-term obligations
Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect of employee service upto the end of the reporting

period and are measured at the amount expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations in the balance sheet.

{ii) Other long-term employee benefit obligations

a)

b)

<)

Gratuity
The Company has a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan”), The Gratuity Plan provides a lump sum payment to employees
who have completed four years and two forty days or more of service at retirement, disability or termination of employment,

being an amount based on the respective employee’s last drawn salary and the number of years of employment with the
Company.

The Gratuity Plan, which is defined benefit plan, is managed by Trust with its investments maintained with Life insurance
Corporation of India. The liabilities with respect to Gratuity Plan are determined by actuarial valuation on projected unit credit
method on the balance sheet date, based upon which the Company contributes to the Gratuity Scheme. The difference, if any,
between the actuarial valuation of the gratuity of employees at the year end and the balance of funds is provided for as assets/
(liability) in the books. Met interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The

Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under Employee benefit expense in statement
of profit or loss:

a) Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements

b) Net interest expense or income

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability), are recognized immediately in the Balance Sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained

earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit
or loss In subsequent periods.

Provident fund

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. the Company has no obligation, other than
the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable through provident fund scheme
as an expense, when an employee renders the related services. If the contribution payable to scheme for service received
before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized as liability
after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for services received
before the balance sheet date, then excesses recognized as an asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for
example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund,

Other employee benefits

Compensated absences which are not expected to occur within twelve months after the end of the period in which the
employee renders the related service are recognised as a liability at the present value of the defined benefit obligation as at the
balance sheet date on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in
the periad in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income and are never reclassified to statement of profit and
loss, Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are
recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss as past service cost.
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2,13

=

—

(iii)

2.14

2.15

Leases

The Company assesses al contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease, That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily comprise of lease for land and building. The Company applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to
make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, Initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the building (i.e. 30 and 60 years)

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the
accounting policies in section 'Impairment of non-financial assets',

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, The
lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of
penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease payments that do

not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.qg., changes to future payments resulting

from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12
meonths or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option), It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition

exemption to leases that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised
as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Government Grants

Government Grants are recognized at their fair value when there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all the attached
conditions will be complied with.

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which
it is intended to compensate, are expensed. Government grant related to the purchase of property, plant and equipment are included in non

current liability as deferred income and are credited to the statement of profit or loss on straight line basis over the expected lives of related
assets.

When the Company receives grants of non-monetary assets, the asset and grant are recorded at fair value amounts and released to profit or
loss over the expected useful life in a pattern of consumption of the benefit of the underlying asset.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity sharehalders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period
is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split, and reverse share split (consolidation of shares) that
have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all potentially dilutive equity shares,
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2.16

2.17

2.18

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

2.19

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing cost includes interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds and charged to Statement of Profit & Loss
on the basis of effective interest rate (EIR) method. Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing cost.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of

time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing costs are recognized
as expense in the period in which they occur.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three
months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an inMaterial risk of changes in value,

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposit held at call with
financial institutions, other short - term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible
to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an inMaterial risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

Foreign currency
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates

('the functional currency'). The Company's financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR) which is also the Company’s functional
and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the transaction.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transaction and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rate are generally recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of

the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date
when the fair value is determined.

Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized as income or expense in the period in which they
arise with the exception of exchange differences on gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value which is
treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair
value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or profit or loss are also recognized in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If the effect of the
time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the
liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Sales Return

Provisions for sales returns is determined based on the historical percentage of sales return for the same types of goods for which the provision
is currently being determined. The same percentage to the sales is applied for the current accounting period to derive the provision for sales
return to be accrued. It is very unlikely that actual sales return will exactly match the historical percentage, so such estimates are reviewed
annually for any material changes in assumptions and likelihood of occurrence.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or nen-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it
is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases,
where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. the Company does not recognize a contingent
liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
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2.20

2.21

a)

a)

Fair value measurement
The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at each balance sheet date.
Fair value Is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordinary transaction between market

participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

(i) In the principal market for asset or liability, or
(ii) In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest,

A fair value measurement of a non- financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability to generate economic benefits by using the
asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is Material to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted{unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is Material to the fair value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is Material to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization ( based on the lowest level input that is Material to fair value
measurement as a whole ) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

Material accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires the management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these judgements, assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Judgments

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which have the most Material
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

Leases

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to extend
the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to
be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement in evaluating
whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors
that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses
the lease term if there is a Material event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to

exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g., construction of Material leasehold improvements or Material customisation to the leased
asset).

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a Material risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The
Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances
and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the
Company, Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Taxes

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of tax regulations, changes in tax laws, and the amount and timing of future taxable
income, Given the wide range of business relationships differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future
changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already recorded, The Company establishes
provisions, based on reasonable estimates. The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax
audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible tax authority.
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b)

c)

d)

e)

f)

a)

h)

Gratuity benefit

The cost of defined benefit plans (i.e. Gratuity benefit) is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various
assumptions which may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary
increases, mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the complexity of the valuation, the underlying assumptions and its long-term
nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes In these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
In determining the appropriate discount rate, management considers the interest rates of long term government bonds with extrapolated
maturity corresponding to the expected duration of the defined benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality

tables for India. Future salary increases and pension increases are based on expected future inflation rates for India. Further details about the
assumptions used, including a sensitivity analysis, are given in Note 31.

Fair value measurement of financial instrument

When the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices in
active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation technigques including the Discounted Cash Flow (DCF) model, The inputs to these
models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair

values. Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments,

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provisions of financial assets are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates. the Company uses
judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Company's past history ,existing
market conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset's recoverable amount. An assets recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset's CGU'S fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use, Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use , the estimated future cash flows are estimated based on past rend and discounted to their present value using a pre:
tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate
valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, or other fair value indicators.

Provision for sales return

Provisions for sales returns is determined based on the historical percentage of sales return for the same types of goods for which the provision
is currently being determined. The same percentage to the sales is applied for the current accounting period to derive the provision for sales
return to be accrued. It is very unlikely that actual sales return will exactly match the historical percentage, so such estimates are reviewed
annually for any material changes in assumptions and likelihood of occurrence.

Provision for expected credit losses (ECL) of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision rates are based on days past
due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type, customer type and rating,
and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance). The provision matrix is initially based on the Company's historical
observed default rates. The Company will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.
At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-loaking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a Material estimate, The
amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The Company's historical credit loss experience
and forecast of economic conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual default in the future. The information about the ECLs
on the Company’s trade receivables and contract assets is disclosed in Mote 10,

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment represent Material portion of the asset base of the Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is
derived after determining an estimate of assets expected useful life and expected value at the end of its useful life. The useful life and residual
value of Company's assets are determined by Management at the time asset is acquired and reviewed periodically including at the end of each

year. The useful life is based on historical experience with similar assets, in anticipation of future events, which may have impact on their life
such as change in technology.
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2.22 New and amended standards adopted by the Company
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015
by issuing the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below:

Ind AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant accounting policies. Accounting
policy information, together with other information, is material when it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of
general purpose financial statements. The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on
the measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company’s financial statements,

Ind AS 12 - Income Taxes
The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations. The
amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no

longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences. The amendments had
nao impact , if any, in its financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a change in
accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new definition, accounting estimates are
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting

policies require items in financial statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty, The amendments had no
impact on the Company's financial statements.

(This place has been left blank intentionally)
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3 Property, plant and equipment

Carrvina amounts of:
Own assets:

As at
21 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Building 412,35 430,53
Plant and machinery 381.11 3%0.14
Furniture and fixtures 11.39 12.62
Vehicles 82.19 48,21
Office eguipment 6.34 7.00
Electrical Equipments & Fittinas 8.42 13.17
Computers & Servers 3.38 2.86

905.18 904.53

Building Plant and Furniture and Vehicles Office Electrical Computers & Servers Total
’ machinery fixtures equiprient Equipments &
Fittings

Cost/ carrvina value:
Balance as at 01 April , 2022 617.76 895,36 43.31 86.96 14,94 64,96 10.63 1,733.92
Additions = 1.41 2.46 9.23 3.84 - 1.99 18.93
Disposals - - = (0.56) = » 2 (0.56)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 617.76 896.77 45.77 95.63 18.78 64.96 12.62 1,752.29
Additions 0.55 44,86 2.68 47.70 2.21 = 2:15 100.15
Disposals E (5.12) - (28.63) 13.70) N {3.83) (41.28)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 618.31 936.51 48.45 114.70 17.29 64.96 10.94 1.811.16
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as at 01 April , 2022 168.55 455,06 28.04 37,61 9.87 45.74 8.26 753.13
Depreciation expense 18.68 51,57 5.11 10.34 1.91 6.05 1.50 95,16
Disposals - = = (0.53) - = - (0.53)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 187.23 506.63 33.15 47.42 11.78 51.79 9.76 847.76
Depreciation expense 18.73 52.15 3.91 12,28 2.42 4.75 1.44 95.68
Disposals % (3.38) = (27.19) 13.258) 4 (3.64) (37.486)
Balance as at 31 March 2024 205.96 555.40 37.06 32.51 10.85 56.54 ] 7.56 905.98
Balance as at 31 March 2023 430.53 390.14 12.62 48.21 7.00 13.17 2.86 904.53
Balance as at 31 March 2024 412,35 381.11 11.39 82.19 6.34 8.42 3.38 905.18

Note :

a) Certain assets has been hypothecated as security by the Company (refer note -14).
b) The Company undisputedly possesses the title deeds for all properties held by the Company, presented under 'Building' in the above schedule,
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As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

4 Intangible assets

Carrying amounts of :

Computer software 0.13 0.13
0.13 0.13
Computer software Total
Cost/ carrying value:
Balance as at 01 April , 2022 2.76 2.76
Additions - -
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 2.76 2.76
Additions “ -
Disposals i -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 2.76 2.76
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance as at 01 April , 2022 2.62 2.62
Amortisation expense 0.01 0.01
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 2.63 2.63
Amortisation expense - -
Disposals = =
Balance as at 31 March 2024 2.63 2.63
Carrying amount
Balance as at 31 March 2023 0.13 0.13
Balance as at 31 March 2024 0.13 0.13

(This place has been left blank intentionally)
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Notes:

Right-of-use assets

Carrying amounts of :
Leasehold Land

Cost/ carrying value:

Balance as at 01 April , 2022
Additions
Disposals
Balance as at 31 March 2023

Additions
Disposals
Balance as at 31 March 2024

Accumulated depreciation:

Balance as at 01 April , 2022
Depreciation expense

Disposals

Balance as at 31 March 2023
Depreciation expense

Disposals

Balance as at 31 March 2024

Carrying amount _
Balance as at 31 March 2023
Balance as at 31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

132743 134.32
132.73 134.32
Leasehold Land Total

140.61 140.61
140.61 140.61
140.61 140.61
4.70 4.70
1.59 1.59
6.29 6.29
1.59 1.59
7.88 7.88
134.32 134.32
132.73 132.73

a) Right-of-use assets includes Lease hold land taken on long term lease agreement of 95 years.

b) The Company undisputedly possesses the registered lease deeds for all properties held by the
Company, presented under 'Leasehold Land' in the above schedule.

c) Leasehold Land have been hypothecated as security by the Company (refer note -14).
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As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

6 Other financial assets

Non-Current
(Unsecured and considered good)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Security deposits and earnest money deposits 12.47 12.47

Bank deposits with maturity of more than 12 months 0.57 0.54
13.04 13.01

Current

(Unsecured and considered good)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

Advance to related parties (refer note 33) 0.16 0.17

0.16 0.17
Notes:

a. Bank deposits include deposits of INR 0.57 lacs as at 31 March 2024 and INR 0.54 lacs as at 31 March 2023 are
lien marked with banks against which bank guarantees have been issued to government authorities.

Income tax assets and liabilities As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Income tax assets
Income tax receivable (net of provisions) 43.42

46.44

43.42

Income tax liabilities

46.44

Income tax payable (net of advance tax) 11.90

11.90

(This place has been left blank intentionally)
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As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

8 Other assets

Non-Current

(unsecured and considered good)

Prepaid Expenses 6.91 0.95
6.91 0.95

Current

(unsecured and considered good)

Prepaid expenses 5.52 6.83

Advances to vendors 1.77 27.72

Balances with Government authorities 77.95 2.06

(unsecured and considered doubtful)

Balances with Government authorities 10.59 42,32

Less: Allowance for doubtful advances ' (10.59) (42.32)
85.24 36.61

Movement in allowance for doubtful advances

For the year ended

31 March 2024

For the year
ended
31 March 2023

Balance as at the beginning of the year 42.32 -
Provision recognised during the year = 42.32
Provision utilised during the year (31.73) -
Balance as at the end of the year 10.59 42.32
9 Inventories As at As at
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value unless otherwise stated) 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
(refer accounting policy 2.09)
Raw materials and Packing materials
In hand 486.62 384.68
In transit 326.46 30.37
Work-in-progress 710.65 582.74
Finished goods 70.23 140.71
Consumables 1.29 2.89
1,595.25 1,141.39

During the year, INR 3.13 lacs (March 31, 2023 : INR 7.92 lacs) was recognized reversal of expense in respect of inventory provision on
account of slow moving of inventories. These adjustments were included in cost of material consumed and change in inventories,

(This place has been left blank intentionally)
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As at As at
0243 31 March 2023
10 Contract balances
Contract bal includ ing
(i) Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good 276.17 260.35
Credit impaired 5.12 -
Considered good - Related Parties (refer note 33) 1,061.77 484.07
1,343.06 1,244.42
Less: Allowance agalnst expected credit loss {5.12} -
1,337.94 4.42
10.1  Trade Recei aging schedul
As at 31 March , 2024
Qutstanding for following periods from due date ayment
" Curent but not g 9 part 24 L
Particulars dué Less than & 6 months =1 1.2 years 2.3 years More than 3 Years Total
Months year ¥ ¥ N
Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered good 607.70 705.39 24.04 0.81 1,337.94
Undisputed Trade Receivables - Credit impaired 2.76 2.36 5,12
607.70 705.39 24.04 0.81 2.76 2.36 1,343.06
As at 31 March , 2023
Qutstanding for following perio due date of pa
. Cursntbutnat ing for g periods from payment
Particulars Less than 6 6 months - 1 Total
due 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Years
Months year
Undisputed Trade Receivables - considersed good 800.16 433.30 2.08 65.52 2.36 1,244.42
800.16 433.30 2.08 6.52 2.36 K 1,244.42
a. Trade Recelvable represents the amount of consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customers that is unconditional, Trade receivable are usualy non interest bearing and
average credit period to customers ranges upto &0 days.
b, Mo trade raceivables or other receivabies are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person, In respect of trade or other receivable due from Firms
or Private Companies respectively in which any director is director or a member, refer note below:
Maorth East Pharma Pack (partnership firm) = =
1 K Print Packs 140.2% 111.06
Relax Pharmaceuticals Private Limited 51.51 130.51
Mediforce Healthcare Private Limited 98.62 38.92
Sirmour Remedies Private Limited = 21.67
Pharma Force Lab 274.63 -
605.05 302.16
¢ Trade receivable includes due from related parties INR 1061,77 lacs (March 31, 2023: INR 984,07 lacs) (refer note 33).
d. The Company has used a practical expedient by computing the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables based on historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward looking
Information.
Receivables are deemed to be past due or impaired with reference to the Comipany’s normal terms and conditions of business. These terms and conditions are determined on a case to case basis with
reference to the customer's credit quality and prevailing market condltions. Receivables that are classified as “past due’ in the below table are those that have not been settled within the terms and
canditions that have been agreed with that customer.
E. in all ice for axp d credit loss:
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Movemant for the year 512 -
Balance at the end of the year 5.12 -
e, There are no unbilled receivable.
£ Trade recejvabies represent the amount of consideration for transfer of goods or services to the customers that is uncenditional
g, The company's exposure to credit and currency risk, and |oss allowances related to trade receivables are disclosed In Mote 35
11 Cash and cash equivalents As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Balances with banks
- In current account
Cash in hand 0.55 0.28
0.55 0.28
Note:
a. At 31 March 2024, the Company has available undrawn borrowing facilities amounting to INR 344,12 lacs (31 March 2023; INR 600.00 lacs). Refer note 31{A) for further details.
b- There are no restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and pricer period.
€ The above balances are used for the purpose of staternent of cash flows.
d Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost:-
As at
31 March 2023
Trade Receivables (note 10} 1,244.42
Cash and cash equivalents [note 11} 0.28
13.18

Cther Financial assels (note &)
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i2 Equity share capital

Authorised
601,000 equity shares of INR 100 each .
(Previous year 601,000 equity shares of INR 100 each)

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

600,000 equity shares of INR 100 each
(Previous year 600,000 equity shares of INR 100 each)

Notes:

(i) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to Equity Shares

Equity shares
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

601.00 601.00
600.00 600.00
600.00 600.00

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of INR 100 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In
the event of liquidation of the Company, holder of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company after distribution of all
preferential amount. The distribution will be in propartion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

(ii) Reconciliation of the number of shares and amount outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the period/year:

a) Issued equity capital

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Particulars Number Amount Number Amount
Equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the period/year 600,000 600.00 600,000 600.00
Add : Issued during the year = = = -
Equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 600,000 600.00 600,000 600.00
(iii) Details of shares held by the holding company
As at As at

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Particulars Number Y% holding Number % holding
Mankind Pharma Limited
- Equity shares 306,000 51,00% 306,000 51.00%
(iv) Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares:
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Numbers % holding Numbers %o holding
Equity shares
Mankind Pharma Limited 306,000 51.00% 306,000 51.00%
Arash Dhawan HUF 120,000 20.00% 120,000 20.00%
Mikunj Tyagl 87,000 14,50% 87,000 14.50%
Veer Pal Singh 87,000 14,50% 87,000 14.50%

600,000 100.00% 600,000 100.00%

(v) Detail of shares held by promoters:

As at March 31, 2024

S.N |Promoter Name Number of shares | % of total shares | % change during

Q held the year
1{Mankind Pharma Limited 306,000 51.00% -
2|Arash Dhawan HUF 120,000 20.00% =
3|Mr. Veer Pal Singh B7.,000 14.50% -
4|Mr. Nikuni Tyaqgi 87,000 14.50% -

As at March 31, 2023

% of total shares

S.N |Promoter Name Number of shares % change during

a held the year
1|Mankind Pharma Limited 306,000 51.00% -
2|Arash Dhawan HUF 120,000 20.00% -
3|Mr. Veer Pal Singh 87,000 14.50% -
4 Mr. Nikunj Tyagi 87,000 14.50% -
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As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
13 Other equity
Retained earnings 2,800.71 2,441.68
2,800.71 2,441.68
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
13.1 Retained earnings
Balance at the beginning of the year 2,441.68 Z317.55
Profit for the year 354.78 120.27
Other comprehensive income 4.25 3.86
Balance at the end of the year 2,800.71 2,441.68

Nature and purpose of reserves
a. The amount that can be distributed by the Company as dividends to its equity shareholders, is determined based on the
requirements of Companies Act, 2013. Thus, the amounts reported above are not distributable in entirety.

b. Retained Earnings are profits that the Company has earned till date less transfer to dividend or other distribution or
transaction with shareholders.

(This place has been left blank intentionally)
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As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

14 Borrowings

Mon-current
(Secured, Valued at amortised cost)
Warking capital loan (refer note (a) & (b) below)

Vehicle loan (refer note (c) below) 26.45 11.41
26.45 11.41

Less: Current maturities of working capital loan (10.99) {6.37)
15,46 5.04

Current

(Secured, Valued at amortised cost)

Cash credit faciiity from bank (refer naote (2) below) 255.69 69.22

Current maturities of long term borrowing 10.99 6.37

266.88 75,59

MNote:
a) The Company has obtained cash credit limit amounting to INR 600 lacs respectivey from HDFC bank against which INR Nil (31 March, 2023: INR Nil ) and INR 255.89 lacs (31

March, 2023; INR 69.22 Lacs) is outstanding as on 31 March, 2024 respectively. These facilities are secured by primary securlty of hypothecation by way of first and exclusive
charge on all present and future current assets of the Company. Further it is also been secured by collateral security of immavable property of the Company situated at Plot 148,
Gondpur, Poanta Sahib, Industrial Area, Phase [1I, Himachal Pradesh.

The facility carries interest rate of 9.25% (MCLR+0,55 basis point).

b} Vehicle loan is secured by hypothecation of vehicle acquired against such loan. Further theses |oans are repayahle in monthly instalment from the date of disbursement. This
Ioan carry intarest rate of 7.3 % p.a.

) Quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the company with banks or financial institutions are In agreement with the books of accounts

d} Changes in liability arising from financing activities:

Particulars Non-Current borrowings Current borrowings Total

31 March 2024 31 March 2023 e 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening balances 11.41 284.65 wa 537.24 80.63 821.89
Cash Inflow 25.00 = - 25.00 -
Cash Ouflows (9.91) (273.28) ### (462.29) 176.76 (742.53)
Interest expenses 2.20 10,05 7.68 5.27 9.88 15.32
Interest paid (2.20) {10.05) ### (4.00% (9.68) (14.05)
Closing balances 26.45 11.41 it 69,22 282.39 £0.63

15 Provisions

MNon-current
Provision for employse benefits

Provisien for gratuity {nat) (refer note 31) - 7.99
- 7.99
Current
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for compensated absences 42.40 41.10
™ 2,43

Provisicn for gratuity {net} {refer note 31)

42,40 43.53
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16 Deferred tax balances

As at
31 March 2024

Asat
31 March 2023

Deferred tax llabilities (B86.51) (89.61)
Deferred tax assets 23.09 31.14
(63.42) (58.47)

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) (net)

Year ended 31 March 2024 Opening Recognised in Recognised in other Closing balance
Balance Profit or loss comprehensive
Income

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (89.61) 3.10 7 (86.51)

(89.61) 3.10 - (86.51)
Deferred tax assets in relation to
Provision for employee benefits 12.97 (0.87) (1.43) 10.67
Allowance for expected credit loss & 1.25 - 1.29
Provision for doubtful loans and advances 10.65 (7.14) - 3.51
Bonus payable 3.05 0.15 - 3.20
Deferred Government Grant 4.19 (0.B4) - 3.35
Provision for slow maoving inventory 0.28 0.79 - 1.07

31.14 (6.62) (1.43) 23.09
Deferred tax liabilities (net) (58.47) (3.52) (1.43) (63.42)
Year ended 31 March 2023 Opening Recognised in Recognised in other Closing balance
Balance Profit or loss comprehensive
Income

Deferred tax liabilities in relation to
Accelerated depreciation for tax purposes (93.21) 3.60 - (89.61)

(93.21) 3.60 - {89.61)
Deferred tax assets in relation to
Provision for employee benefits 20.28 (6.01) (1.30) 12.97
Pravision for doubtful loans and advances & 10.65 10.65
Bonus payable 3.52 0.53 3.05
Deferred Government Grant 5.03 (D.B4) ~ 4.19
Pravision for slow moving inventory 2t (1.93) - 0.28

30.04 2.40 (1.30) 31.14

Deferred tax liabilities (net) (63.17) 6.00 (1,30) (58,47)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are being offset as they relate to taxes on income levied by the same governing taxation laws.
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As at

As at
31 March 2023

17 QOther liabilities
Non-current
Deferred Government grant (refer note below) 10.00 13.34
10,00 1333
Current
Statutory liabilities 8.29 24.74
Deferred Government grant (refer note below) 3.33 3.33
11.62 28.07
Note:

a. The Company has received government grant amounting to INR 50.00 lacs in FY 2018-19 in respect of 15% central capital investment subsidy scheme under special
package scheme for Himachal Pradesh. Government grant has been recognised on a systematic basis over the period in which the Company depreciates Its investmen in
plant and machinery.

b.  Movement of government grant:

Opening balance 16.67 20.00
Add: Grant recelved durlng the year H =
Less: Government grant income (refer note 21) (3.33) (3.33)
Closing balance 13.34 16.67
i8 Trade payables
Current
I. total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (see note 29) 3.82 40.94
ii. total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 204.34 207.60
298.16 24853
18.1 Trade Payable aging schedule
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Unbilled Dues Not due Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years Vet More than 3 years
Total cutstanding dues of micro
enterprises and small enterprises ) 182 ) } ~ 183
Total cutstanding dues of creditors ather
than micro enterprises and small
enterprises 66.64 227.70 - - - - 294.34
Total 66.64 231.52 = = = L= 5‘98.15
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Unbilled Dues Not due Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years VeRrs More than 3 years
Total outstanding dues of micro o
enterprises and small enterprises _ 39,69 1.25 . _ _ 40,04
Total outstanding dues of creditors ather
than micro enterprises and small )
enterprises 61.60 144.03 1.97 - - - 207.60
Total 61.60 183.72 3.22 - - - 248.54
Note:
a. The average credit period on purchases Is upto 60 to 90 days for the Company.
b. Trade Payables include due to related parties INR 92.07 lacs (March 31, 2023; INR 29.96 lacs).(Refer note-33). //-’-.-_-__““2‘*-\.

¢. The amounts are unsecured and non-interest bearing.

d, For terms and conditions with related parties, refer to Note 33,
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All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
19 Revenue from operations
19.1 Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of products 5,999.36 5,233.44
5,999.36 5,233.44
(a) Disaggregated revenue information
Set out below is the disaggregation of the Company's revenue from contracts with customers:
. Year ended Year ended
Type Pl gpods feenices 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Packing Material for Pharmaceutical Companies 5,899.36 5,233.44
Total revenue from contracts with customers 5,999.36 5,233.44
Revenue by location of customers
India 5,999.36 5,233.44
Qutside India E N
Total revenue from contracts with customers 5,999.36 5,233.44
Timing of revenue recognition
Goods transferred at a point in time 5.,999.36 5.233.44
Total revenue from contracts with customers 5,999.36 5,233.44
(b) Contract balances
Trade receivables ] 1,337.54 1,244.42
Contract liabilities = -
Contract liabilities consist of short-term advances received from customer to supply goods,
(c) Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price
Revenue as per contracted price 6,028.45 5,253.83
Adjustments:
Sales return {29.09) (20.39)
Revenue from contracts with customers 5,999.36 5,233.44

(d) Performance obligations

Performance obligation in respect of sale of goods is satisfied when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the

goods and payment is generally dues within 30 to 60 days from delivery of goods (refer accounting policy 2.12).

20 Other income

Interest income
Interest income earned on:

- bank deposits (at amortised cost) 0.72 0.54
Interest received on income tax refund 0.38 -
Other interest income 0.02 -
1.12 0.54
Other non-operating income
Government grant income (refer note 17) 3.33 3.33
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 5.35 0.31
Scrap sales 58.19 60.94
Miscellaneous income 35.11 2.61
101.98 67.19
103.10 67.73
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All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated

21

22

23

24

25

Cost of raw material and components consumed
Raw material and components consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year (refer note 9)
Add: Purchases

Less: inventory at the end of the year (refer note 9)

Changes in inventories of finished goods and work in progress

Opening Stock:
Finished goods
Work in progress

Closing Stock:
Finished goods
Work in progress

Net decrease/(increase) in inventories of finished goods and

work in progress

Employee benefits expense

Salaries and wages

Contribution to provident and other fund
Gratuity expense (refer note 31)

Staff welfare expenses

Finance Costs

Interest expense on borrowings
Interest on delay depaosit of income tax
Other finance costs (refer note 29)

Depreciation and amortisation expense

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (refer note 3)
Depreciation of Right-of-use assets (refer note 5)

(This place has been left blank intentionally)

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

415.05 829.68
5,185.96 3,766.46
5,601.01 4,596.14
(813.08) (415.05)
4,787.93 4,181.09
140.71 79.98
582.74 740.76
723.45 820.74
70.23 140,71
710.65 582.74
780.88 723.45
(57.43) 97.29
502.56 443.96
24.76 22.72
16.14 18.05
8.28 3.95
551.74 488.68
9.74 15.32
s 0.04
0.14 0.29
9.88 15.65
95.68 95.16
1.59 1.59
97.27 96.75
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Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
26 Other expenses
Power and fuel 138.54 111.53
Rent 0.26 ¥
Repair and maintenance
- Machinery 15.42 18.35
- Building 3.78 10.91
- others 2l 2.38
Insurance 3.68 10.57
Rates and taxes 4.62 3.38
Travelling and conveyance 17.98 18.03
Printing and stationery 3.98 2.69
Freight cartage and other distribution cost 2.02 0.44
CSR expenditure (refer note 36) 10.02 12.80
Legal and professional charges 7.99 7.05
Payments to auditors (refer note below) 3.50 3.45
Bank charges 1.05 1.05
Trade and other receivables written off 5.12 =
Allowance for doubtful advances = 42.32
Miscellaneous expenses 17.50 17.40
Total 238.23 262.35
Note:
Payments to the auditors (excluding input tax)
1 To statutory auditers
a) Audit fees 3.50 3.45
b) Reimbursement of expenses ~ -
3.50 3.45

(This place has been left blank intentionally)
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Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

27 Income taxes
27.1  Income tax recognised in the Statement of profit and loss
Current tax

In respect of the current year
In respect of the previous vear

Deferred tax
In respect of the current year

Total income tax expense recognised in the current year

The Income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit before tax

Statutory income tax rate

Income tax expense at statutory income tax rate

Effect of expenseas that are not deductible in determining taxable profit
Deferred tax credit in respect of the prior vears

Income Tax in respect of the previous vear

At the effective income tax rate of 25.28% (31 March 2023: 24.53%)

27.2 Income tax recoanised in other comprehensive income

Income tax relating to item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
- Remeasurement of the defined benefit plan

Total income tax expense recognised in other comprehensive income

119.01 50.38
{2.47) (5.29)
116.54 45.09
3.52 (6.00)
3.52 (6.00)
120.06 39.09
474.84 159.36
25.168% 25.168%
119.51 40.11
2.57 3.88
0.45 0.39
(2.47) (5.29)
120.06 39.09
(1.43) (1.30)
(1.43) (1.30)

{This place has been left blank intentionally)
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28

29

unts in INR lacs unless ot stated

Earnings per equity share

Basic earnings per equity share has been computed by dividing net profit after tax by the weighted average number of equity shares autstanding for the period.
Diluted earnings per equity share has been computed using the weighted average number of equity shares and dilutive potential equity shares outstanding during
the year.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders INR lacs 354.78 120.27
Weighted averaga number of equily shares used for computing Number 600,000 600,000
basic and diluted eaming per share

Mominal Value of Eguity Shares INR 100.00 100.00
Basic earnings per share INR 59.13 20.04
Diluted earnings per share INR 59.13 20.04

MSMED Disclosure

Information as required to be furnished as per section 22 of the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) for the year ended 31
March 2022 s given below. This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information avallable with the
Company.

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(i The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid
te any supplier covered under MSMED Act:

- Principal amount 3.37 40.34

- Interest thereon 0.45 0.60
(il the amount of Interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 18, of the = =

MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to

the supplier beyond the appainted day during each accounting year

[{1}] the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in - -
making payment (which have baen paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the Interest specified under this
Act

(v} the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of 0.45 0.60
gach accounting year

(v} The arnount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the - -
succesding years, until such date when the interest dues above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpese of disaliowance as
a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006

(This place lias been left blank intentionally)
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30 Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)

A.

Contingent liabilities (to the extent not provided for)

Particulars ) As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Disputed tax liabilities

Demand u/s 143(3) of Income Tax Act, 1961 for AY 17-18 2.35 -
2.35 -

Note: The Company is contesting the demands and the management, including its tax advisors, believe that its position is
likely to be upheld in the appellate process and accordingly no provision has been considered in these financial statements
for the tax demand raised. The management believes that the ultimate outcome of this proceeding will not have a material
adverse effect on the Company's financial position and results of operations.

During the year, the Income Tax Department (‘the department’) had conducted a search under section 132 of the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (‘the Act’) on holding Company’s registered office, corporate office, few of its manufacturing locations,
residence of few of its employees/key managerial personnel, other premises and few of its group entities.

The Income Tax Department consequent to search on holding company, has also issued notices under Section 148 of the
Income Tax Act 1961 in December 2023 which requires the Company to furnish income tax returns in response to notice
under Section 148 of the Act for the assessment years 2020-21, 2021-22 and 2022-23. The Company has filed income tax
returns in response to such notices under section 148 of the Act. Based on the returns filed in response to section 148 and
the assessment made by the management and its tax advisor, the Company is of the view that no material adjustments
are required to be made in these financial statements.

Undrawn committed borrowing facility
The Company has available cash credit limits of INR 600.00 lacs respectively from HDFC bank. Out of which, the Company

has availed cash credit facility amount to INR 255.88 (31 March 2023 INR 69.22) and amount of INR 344.12 lacs remains
undrawn as at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023: INR 530.78).

(This place has been left blank intentionally)
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31 Employee Benefits:
The Company participatss in defined contribution and benefit schemes, the assets of which are held (where fundad) in separately administered funds.
For defined contribution schemes the amaunt charged to the statement of profit or loss is the total of contributions payable in the nine months ended.
a. Defined contribution plan
The Company's contribution to the Employees Provident Fund is deposited with the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner for qualifying employees, Under the scheme, the Company is required to
contribute & specified percentage of payroll cost to the retirament benefit plan to fund the benefits.
The Company recognised INR 24.76 Lacs for the year ended 31 March, 2024 (31 March, 2023: INR 16.97 Lacs), towards contribution to provident fund in the statement of profit and loss. The
contribution payable ta the plan by the Company Is at the rate specifiad in rules to the scheme.
b. Defined benefit plan — Gratuity plan
The Company's contribution tewards its gratuity liabllity |s a defined benefit retirement plan.
In accordance with Paymant of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company contributes to a defined benefit plan {"the gratuity plan") run by Madipack Innovations Employees Group Gratuity Trust ("the trust").
The trust has taken a Group Gratulty Scheme which is administered by Life Insurance Corporation {"LIC") of India, Under the gratuity plan, every employee who has completed at least five years of
service usually oets a gratuity on departure @ 15 days of last drawn basic salary for each completed year of service. The present value of obligation is determinad based on actuarial valuation using
the Projected Unit Credit Method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit entitlement and measures each unit separately to bulld up the final
obligation.
The gratuity Hability arises on retirement, withdrawal, resignatien and death of an emplayee. The aforesaid liability is calculated on the basis of fifteen days salary (1.e. last drawn basic salary) for each
completed year of service subject to completion of five years service.
(i) Risks iated with Plan Provisi
Risks associated with the plan provisions are actuarial risks. These risks are:- (i) interest rate risk {discount rate risk), (i) mortality risk and (iii) salary growth risk.
Interest rate risk (discount rate risk) A decrease in the bond interest rate (discount rate} will increase the plan liabllity
Mortality risk The present value of the defined benefit plan lizbility is calculatad by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan
participants. For this report we have used Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) ulimate table,
& change in mortality rate will have a bearing on the plan’s liability.
Salary growth risk The present valug of the defined banefit plan liability is calculated with the assurnption of salary increase rate of plan participants
in future. Deviation in the rale of increase of salary in future for pian participants from the rate of Increase in salary used
determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.
The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out as at 31 March, 2024, The present value of
defined benefit abigation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.
(ii) Principal actuarial assumptions:
Principle actuarial assumption used to determine the present value of the benefit obligation are as follows:
5. Particulars Refer note below As at As at
Mo. 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1. Discount rate (p.a.) 1 7:22% 7.36%
il. Salary escalation rate (p.a.) 2 10.50% 10.50%
Jil. Mumber of employees G4 B6
iv. Average remaining working life (years) 22.17 22.57
v. Investmentin LIC
100.00% 100.00%
Notes
1 The discaunt rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian Government securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of abligations,
2 The expected return is based on the expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on investment of the fund during the estimated term of the obligations.
3 The estimates of future salary increases considered takes into account the inflation, senlarity, promotion and other relevant factors,
(ili) Demographic assumptions:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Retirement age 58 years 58 years
Mortality rate (100% of IALM 2012-14) {100% of IALM 2012-
14)
Attrition rate
Upto 30 years 3.67% 5.41%
From 31 to 44 years 3.63% 2.18%
1.81% 1.06%

Above 44 years

The following tables set out the funded status of the gratuity plan and amounts recognised in the Company’s financial statements:
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a. Amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss in respect of these defined benefits plans are as follows:

Particulars

Current service cost
Net interast sxpenses
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in statement of profit and loss

b. Remeasurement (gain)/loss on the net fit liability rec

Particulars

Actuarial {pains)/losses due to change in dempgraphic assumptions

Actuarial {gains)/losses due to change in financial assumptions

Actuarial {gains)/losses due to change in experience variance

Actuarial (gains)/losses on Plan Asset

Component of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income

in other comprehensive income:

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

15.37 16.20

0.77 1.85

16.14 18.05

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(3.51) 1.89

2,45 (2.84)

(5.00) (2.77)

0.38 {1.54)

(5.68) {5.16)

The current service cost and the net Interest expense for the year are Included in the 'Employee benefits expense *in the statement of profit and loss. The remeasurement of the net defined

benefit llability is included in the other comprehensive income.

¢, The amount included in the Balance Sheet arising from the entity's obligation in respect of its defined benefits plans as follows:

Particulars
Present value of defined

benefit obligations
Present value of plan assets

Unfunded status - deficit

d. Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of the defined benefit obligation:

Particulars

QOpening defined beneafit obligation
Current service cost

Interest cost

Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation
Benelits paid

Closing defined benefit obligations

e, Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Plan assets :

Particulars
Fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the period
Actual Income an Flan Asset
Fund Management Charges
Employer contribution
Banefits paid
Fair value of plan assats at the end of the period
f. MNet defined benefit asset/ (liability) recognised in the balance sheet :
Particulars

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Less @ Fair value of plan assets

Unfunded status - deficit/surplus

Current portion
Man-current portion (refer note 14)

g. Sensitivity analysis

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
110.28 109.78
(116.50) (99.36)
(6.22) 10.42
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
109.78 91.65
15.37 16.20
8.06 £6.59
(6.05) (3.62)
{16.90) (1.04)
110.28 109.78
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
99.36 65.97
B.12 6.29
{1.18) =
27,10 28.14
(16.90}) {1.04)
116.50 99.36
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
110.28 109.78
(116.50) (99.36)
(6.22) 10.42
- 2.43
- 7.99

Slgnificant acturial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligatien are discount rate and expected salary Increase. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on
reasonably possible changes of the assumptions eccurring at the end of the reparting period, while halding all cther assumptions constant.

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Decrease Increase Decrease Increase
Discount Rate (-/+0.5%)
(% changa compared to base due to sensitivity) 8.31 (7.51) 9.16 (8.24)
Salary Growth Rate (-/+0.5%)
{% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 6.62 7.23 7.37 6.72

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would pcour in isolation of cne

anather a5 sume of the assumptions may be correlated.

Furthermare, in presenting the above sensitivity analysts, the present value of the defined benefit obligation has been calculated using the prejected unit credit method at the end of the reparting

periad, which is the same as that applied In calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the Balance sheet.

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used In preparing the sensitivity analysis from prior years.
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h. The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted defined benefit obligation Is as follows:

As at As at
fi
Expected cash flows over the next 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
First year 4,25 2.44
Second upto fifth year 19.19 15.92
Beyond fifth year B6.85 51.44
110.29 109.81
i. The Company expects to contribute INR 17.46 lacs (March 31, 2023 INR 18,36 lacs) to the plan during the next financial year.
32  Segment Information
A Basis for segmantation
which as ger Ind AS - 108 *Operating Segments” [s considered the only reportable segment.

The operations of the Company are limited to one segment viz. pharma packaging,

B. Geographic Segment
The Company operates only In India and does not have any saprate identifiable geographic segment.

C.  Major Customar 3
There are major customers which accounted for 10% or mare of the Company's revenue for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 respectively. The total amount of revenue from such

customers are INR 2334.62 lacs and INR 3678.05 lacs for the period ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 respectively.

{This place has been left blank inteationally)
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34

1)

2)

Fair value measurements
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the Company’s financial instruments:

Carrying Value Fair Value
As at As at As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Financial instruments by category
Financial assets at amortized cost
Trade Receivables 1,337.94 1,244.42 1,337.94 1,244.42
Cash and cash equivalents 0.55 0.28 0.55 0.28
Other Financial assets 13.20 13.18 13.20 13.18
1,351.69 1,257.88 1,351.69 1,257.88
Financial Liabilities at amortized cost
Borrowings 282.34 80.63 282.34 80.63
Trade Payables 298.16 248.54 298.16 248.54
580.50 329.17 580.50 329.17

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale, The following methods and assumptions were used to

estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the Caompany's interest-bearing borrowings and loans are determined by using effective interest rate (EIR) method
using discount rate that reflects the issuer’s borrowing rate as at the end of the reporting period. The own non-performance risk as at 31

March 2024 was assessed to be insignificant.

Long-term receivables/payables are evaluated by the Company based on parameters such as interest rates, risk factors, individual
creditworthiness of the counterparty and the risk characteristics of the financed project. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken

into account for the expected credit losses of these receivables.

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair value measurement categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy together

with a guantitative sensitivity analysis as at 31 March 2024, are as shown below:

Fair value hierarchy

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technigue:

Level 1: guoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are cbservable, either directly or

indirectly

Level 3: technigues that use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that are not based on observable market

data

Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as on 31 March 2024

Carrying Value Fair Value

31 March 2024 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets carried at amortized cost for
which fair value are disclosed
Trade Receivables 1,337.94 = - 1,337.94
Cash and cash equivalents 0.55 ~ = 0.55
Other Financial assets 13.20 - - 13.20
Liabilities carried at amortized cost for
which fair value are disclosed
Borrowings 282.34 = - 282.34
Trade Payables 298.16 - - 298.16
Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as on 31 March 2023

' Carrying Value Fair Value

31 March 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets carried at amortized cost for
which fair value are disclosed
Trade Receivables 1,244.42 = - 1,244.42
Cash and cash equivalents 0.28 = t: 0.28
Other Financial assets 13.18 = - 13.18
Liabilities carried at amortized cost for
which fair value are disclosed
Barrowings 80.63 - - 80.63
Trade Payables 248.54 = = 248.54

MNote:

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables and other current liabilities approximate

their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.




Medipack Innovations Private Limited
Motes forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 21 March 2024

All amounts are in INR lacs unless otherwise stated
35 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial liabllities, other than derivatives, comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations.
The Company’s principal financial assets Include loans, trade and other recaivables, and cash and cash equivalents that are derived directly from Its operations.

The Company's financial risk ranagement is an Integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company is exposed te market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk,

The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. The senior professionals working to manage the financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance
framework for the Company are accountable to the Board of Directors. This process provides assurance to Company's senior management that the Company’s financial risk-taking activities
are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risk are identified, measured and managed in accordance with Company policies and Company risk objective.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing sach of these risks which are summarized as below:

(a) Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprises three types of risk: currency
rate risk, interest rate risk and other price risks, such as equity price risk and commadity price risk. Financial instruments affected by market risks include loans and borrowings, deposits and
fareign currency recelvables and payables, The sensitivity analysis In the following sections relate to the position as at reporting date. The analysis exclude the impact of movements in market
variables an: the carrying values of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions; and the non-financial assels and Tiabilities. The sensitivity of the relevant Profit and Loss itam
and equity is the effect of the assumed changes in the respective market risks, This Is based on the financial assets and financlal liabilities held as of 31 March 2024.

(i) Foreign Currency Risk
Forelgn currency risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes In foreign exchange rates.

(ii) Interest Rate Risk
Intarest rate risk Is the risk that the fair value er future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changéas in market interest rates. The Company’s expasure
to the risk of changes in the market interest rates relates to debt obligations with flpating & fixed interest rates.

The Company manages its interest rate risk by having a portfolio of variable rate borrowings. In order to optimize the Company's position with regards to interest income &
interest expense, the Company performs a comprehensive corporate interest rate risk by proportion of fixed and floating rate as well as by using different type of economic
product of floating rate of borrowings in its total portfolio,

interest rate Sensitivity of Borrowings
With all other variables held constant, the following table demonstrates the sensitivity Lo a reasonably possible change in interest rates on floating rate portion of loans and

barrowings.
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Increase/decreas Impact on profit Increase/decrease in Impact on profit
e in basis points before tax basis points before tax
Cash credit facility/loans from related parties +0.50 {1.41) +0.50 (0.40)
-0.50 1.41 -0.50 0,40

(iii) commodity Price Risk
The Company Is nat exposed to any other risk as It does not have financial assets or liabilities the value of which will be effected on account ¢f change in any other factor or risk.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. The Company has adopted a pelicy of only dealing with
creditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a mesns of mitigating the rigk of financial loss from defaults. The Company regularly monitors its
counterparty limits by reviewing the cutstanding balance and ageing of the same.

Possible credit risk . Credit risk manzgement

Credit risk related to trade receivables Credit risk s the risk of financial loss to the Company if 3 customer or counterparty to a financial
instrurnent fails to mest |ts contractual cbligations, and arises principally from the Company's
receivables from customers and Investment securities. Credit risk is managed through credit
approvals, establishing credit limits and continuously maonitoring the creditworthiness of
customers to which the Company grants credit terms in the normal course of business. The
Company establishes an allowance for doubtful debts and impairment that represents its
estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade and other racelvables and Investments.

Receivables are desmed to be past due or impaired with reference to the Company's normal
terms and conditions of business. These terms and conditions are determined on & case to case
basis with reference to the customer's credit guality and prevailing market ceonditions.
Receivables that are classified as ‘past due’ in the above tables are those that have not been
settled within the terms and conditions that have been agreed with that custamer.

Credit risk related to bank balances Company holds bank balances with reputed and creditworthy banking institution within the
approved exposures limit of each bank. None of the Company's cash equivalents, including time
deposits with banks, are past due or impaired,

The carrying value of financial assets other than cash represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class
of financial assets.

() Liguidity

The Company requires funds both for short-term operational needs as well as for long-term investment pragramme mainly in growth projects. The Company generates sufficient cash flows
from the current operations which together with the available cash and cash eguivalents and short-term investments provide liguidity both in the short-term as well as in the long-term,

The Company remains cemmitted to maintaining a healthy liquidity, gearing ratio, deleveraging and strengthening its balance sheet. The maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities
based on the remaining period from the date of balance sheel to the contractual maturity date is given in the table below. The figures reflact the contractual undiscounted cash obligation of
the Company.

Mot o
il Y
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As at 31 March 2024
Financial liabilities Less than 1 year 1to5 years Total
Barrowings 266.88 15.456 282.34
Trade payables 298.16 - 29B8.16
Total 565.04 15.46 580,50
As at 31 March 2023
Financial liabilities Less than 1 year 1to 5 years Total
Borrowings 75.59 5.04 80.63
Trade payables 248.54 - 248.54
Total 324.13 5.04 329.17
36 Corporate social responsibility

37

38
i
(i)

39

As per provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Comparny has to Incur at least 2% of average net profits of the praceding three financial years towards Corporate Soclal
Responsibllity ("CSR"). Accordingly, a CSR committes has been farmed for carrying out CSR activities as per the Schedule VI of the Companies Act, 2013.Detalls are as under:

Particulars Year ended Year Ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Details of CSR Expenditure:
Amount required to be spent during the period as per section 135 of the Act 9,91 12.78
C5R expenditure amount approved by board during the year). 0.91 12,78
Amount spent during the year on
(I3 Construction/ acquisition of assets - -
(iii) On purpose other than above 9.91 12.8
Details related to spent / unspent obligations:
i) Contribution to Public Trust N :
(i) Contribution to Charitable Trust 9.91 12.8
(il) Unspent amount in relation to: - -
- Ongoing project ‘ )
- Other than ongoing project = &
Total Amount Spent 9.91 12.8
Total amount recognised in the statement of profit and loss 9.91 12.8

- (0.02)

Amount Yet to be spent / (Excess spent during the year)

Capital Management

For the purposes of Company's capital management, Capital includes equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company and all other equity reserves. The primary objective of the
Company's capital management is to safeguard its ability to continue as galng concern and to ensure that it maintains an efficient capital structure and maximize shareholder value. The
Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in econemic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. Mo changes were
made in the objectives, policles or processes for managing capital during the period ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net
debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company’s policy is to keep the gearing ratio to the minimum.

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Loans and borrowings 282.34 a0.63
Less:- Cash and cash equivalents {0.55) (0.28)
MNet Debt 2B1.79 80.35
Equity ( Net Worth ) 3,400.71 3,041.68
Total Capital 3,400.71 3,041.68
Capital and Net Debt 3,682.50 3,122.03
Gearing ratio (Nel Debt/Capital and Net Debt) 7.65 % 2.57 %
Leases
The Company’s lease asset primarily consist of leases for Land having lzase term of 95 years,
Follawing is carrying value of right of use assets recognised and the movemants thereaf during the year ended March 31, 2023:
(Rs in lacs)
Particulars Right of Use Asset Total
Leasehold La
Balance as at April 1, 2021 137.50 137.50
Additions during the year = =
Deletion during the year S =
Depreclation of Right of use assets (refer note 25) [1.59) {1.59)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 135.91 135.91
Additions during the year 3 -
Deletion during the year - .
Depreciation of Right of use assets (refer note 25) {1.59) {1.59)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 134.32 134.32

Consequent to the disruption caused due to COVID-19, the Company has made an assessment as at March 31, 2024 of recoverability of the carrying values of Its assets such as property,
plant and equipment, intangible assets having indefinite useful life, inventory, trade raceivables, and other current assets giving due consideration to the internal and external factors. Further,
on account of continuad spread of COVID-19 disease in the country, the Company has made timely and requisite changes in business model which has resulted in consistent growth across the
product segments during the year, The Company is continuously menitoring the situation arising on account of COVID-1% and will make appropriate action required, if any.

The Company has migrated to upgraded version of accounting software from legacy accounling software during the year. The audit trail feature In respect of the legacy accaunting software is
not enabled. The upgraded accounting software used for maintaining its books of account has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the
year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, Further, there are no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in respect of upgraded accounting software.
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Ratio analysis and its elements

Ratio Numerator Denominator 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 % Change Remarks
Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 4.78 6.12 -21.85%
Cebt- Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's 0.08 0.03 213% Refer to remark 1 below
Equity
Debt Service Coverage Earnings for debt service = Net Debt service = 28.73 0.39 7203% Refer to remark 2 balow
ratio profit after taxes + Non-cash Interest & Lease
operating expensas Payments +
Principal
Repayments
Return on Equity ratio Met Profits after taxes — Average 11.01% 4.04% 173% Refer to remark 3 below
Preference Dividend Shareholder’s
Equity
Inventory Turnover ratio  Cost of goods sold Average 3.46 3.06 13%
Inventory
Trade Receivable Net credit sales = Gross cradit Average Trade 4.65 3.87 20%
Turnover Ratio sales - sales return Receivable
Trade Payable Turnover  Net credit purchases = Gross Average Trade 1B.97 B.26 130% Refer to remark 4 below
Ratio credit purchases - purchase Payables
return
Met Capital Turnover Net sales = Total szles - sales Working capital = 251.21% 258.17% -2.70%
Ratio returm Current assets -
Current liabllities
Net Profit ratio Net Profit Met sales = Total 5.91% 2.30% 157% Refer to remark 5 below
sales - sales
return
Return on Capital Earnings before Interest and Capital Employed 12.94% 5.50% 135% Refer to remark & below

Employed

Remarks

Nompsw N

taxes

(This place has been left blank intentionally)

= Tanglble Net
Worth + Total
Debt + Deferred
Tax liabality

. Debt- Equity Ratio has increased primarily on account of increase in cash credit utilisation during the period.
. Dabt service coverage ratios has Increased primarily on account of increase in profit during the period.

Return on Equity ratio has increased primarily on account of increase in net profit of the company.
Trade Payable Turnover Ratio has increased on account of increase In purchases coupled with increase In average trade payables.
Met Profit ratio has Increased primarily on account of increase in sales and profit.

Return on capital employed has increased primarily on account of increase in earning before interest and taxes.
The ratios which are not applicable to the Company have not been disclosed above.
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Other

Infaredtb@cany does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yel to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period,

(Ii) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial period

(ili) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), Including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary

shall:
{a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(iv} The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies], including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise)

that the Company shall:
(a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities Identified in any manner whatscever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(b} provide any guarantes, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimale Beneficiaries

(v} The Company have not any such ransaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the period in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 .

(vl) The firm does not have any transactions with companies struck off,

The figures have been rounded off to the nearest Lacs of rupees upto two decimal placas.
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